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MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2016

The directors present their annual report, together with the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Board of Directors

The directors of the Company who held office during the period under review were:

John Cassar White (Chairman)
Felipe Navarro Lépez de Chicheri
John P. Cliff

Joseph Brincat

Mario Mallia

Martin Galea

Nikolaos Antimisaris

Pedro Lépez Solanes

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, every member or group of members
holding in aggregate at least 10% of the issued share capital of the Company having voting
rights, are entitled to appoint one director. Every member or group of members holding at least
an additional 13% of the issued share capital of the Company having voting rights, are entitled to
appoint an additional director for every 13% holding.

Unless appointed for a longer or shorter period, or unless they resign or are earlier removed,
directors hold office for a period of one year, provided that no appointment may be made for a
period exceeding three years.

Principal Activities

The Company is licensed by the Malta Financial Services Authority to carry on long term
business of insurance, including life insurance and life re-insurance, as authorised under the
Insurance Business Act (Chapter 403 of the Laws of Malta). The Group is also authorised to
provide investment services in terms of the Investment Services Act (Chapter 370 of the Laws of
Malta).

Business review 2016

MAPFRE MSV Life p.lc. (“MAPFRE MSV Life” and “MAPFRE MSV Group”) registered a
profit before tax of €11.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, down 25.6% on the
previous year where a €15.6 million profit before tax was generated. Profit after tax is recorded at
€8.6 million, down 14.9% on the previous year. Prior year profitability was influenced by a one-
off gain of pre-tax €5.05m arising as a result of a major restructuring of the Company’s
reinsurance programme replacement as from financial year 2015.
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Directors’ report - continued
Business review 2016 - continued

Operating results were supported by strong inflows of premium revenue across the Company’s
range of insurance and investment products resulting from stronger customer demand.

Gross premiums written for financial year 2016 increased by 23.5% from €220.8 million to
€272.6 million. This was mainly due to an increased demand across all products in particular
single premium savings contracts and life protection business.

Claims increased to €144.4 million through the year compared to a prior year €109.2 million.
During the year the Company had a higher mix of maturing medium-term single premium
contracts, the large proportion of which has subsequently been re-invested in new medium-term
contracts.

Investment conditions were characterised by continuing low interest rates, low inflation and a
relatively weak Euro currency resulting in lower realised yields and stable unrealised gains
recorded on asset classes when compared to the prior year.

In aggregate, the balance on the long term business technical account decreased to €10.7 million
from a prior year €14.1 million as a result of the non-recurring gain from the restructuring of the
reinsurance programme in 2015 but the technical result was still supported by strong business
growth and technical performance.

The MAPFRE MSV Group’s total assets increased by 10.7% from €1,743.9 million at the end of
2015 to €1,930.4 million at the end of 2016, whilst net technical provisions (including investment
contracts without DPF) increased by 11.0% from €1,561.1 million in 2015 to €1,733.4 million in
2016.

The value of in-force business, which projects future transfers to shareholders arising from
policies in force at the end of the year, increased by 12.4% from €53.4 million in 2015 to €60.0
million in 2016. This is partially attributable to the future value of business written during the
year and the impact of the year’s updated mortality assumptions.

Equity and bond markets produced robust yet somewhat weaker returns than those generated in
prior year with net investment income decreasing from €91.2 million in 2015 to €78.1 million in
2016. Investment performance was underpinned by the Company’s conservative and diversified
portfolio of assets, as well as by the rigorous and prudent investment management process that is
so important in the management of life insurance companies.

Total shareholders’ funds at the close of 2016 amounted to €160.3 million (2015: €150.2
million), an increase of 6.7% over the previous year.

Ll
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Directors’ report ~ continued
Business review 2016 - continued

The net asset value per share has increased from €6.86 as at the end of 2015 to €7.32 per share
driven by the underlying profitability of the business.

The shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life are wholly committed to ensuring that the Company
remains adequately capitalised at all times and well positioned for both business growth and the
regulatory capital requirements of the now applicable Solvency II framework. The smooth and
seamless transition from the outgoing Solvency 1 regime to the incoming Solvency 2 regime has
allowed MAPFRE MSV Life to recognise a higher element of excess regulatory capital on
transition and this has been taken into consideration by the Directors when recommending an
uplift to this year’s dividend level. The Company’s expected Solvency II Ratio as at 31
December 2016 reported to the MFSA is 307% and 288% before and after the payment of
dividend respectively.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final net dividend of €11.55million (2015:
€5.00million). MAPFRE MSV Life remains focused on the generation of capital and its
disciplined allocation and appropriation.

In March 2017, the Board of Directors of MSV Group approved a resolution whereby differential
rates of Regular Bonuses were declared in respect of with-profits plans held with MAPFRE MSV
Life for the year ended 31 December 2016. These amounted to 3.15% for the MSV
Comprehensive Life Plan (regular and single premium policies), 3.25% in respect of the MSV
Comprehensive Flexi Plan (regular and single premium policies), 3.25% under the MSV Single
Premium Plan, 3.25% in respect of the MSV Personal Pension Plan and 3.25% under the with-
profits options of the MSV Investment Bond and of the MSV Retirement Plan. On the ‘Old
Series’ Endowment and Whole Life policies, a Regular Bonus of 2.40% of the basic sum assured
plus bonuses was declared. In addition, the Board also approved the declaration of a Final Bonus
in respect of the Comprehensive Life Plan (single and regular premium) and the Comprehensive
Flexi Plan (single and regular premium), policies that have been in force for more than 10 years.
The Final Bonus will be paid on claims payable as a result of death or maturity between 1 March
2017 and the next bonus declaration, at a rate of 2.50% for every year after the 10th year of the
policy capped at the rate of 10.00%. This final bonus will be paid on the value of the Policy
Account as at the date of death or maturity.

The Board also approved a Regular Bonus of 3.15% on those Secure Growth policies which
formed part of the portfolio of business transferred to MAPFRE MSV Life from Assicurazioni
Generali S.p.A. during 2000. Finally the Board also approved a Regular Bonus of 1.75% on the
Alico 78 policies and a Regular Bonus of 2.00% on the Alico 66 polices which formed part of the
portfolio of business transferred to MAPFRE MSV Life in 2011 from American Life Insurance
Company (“ALICO”).
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Directors’ report - continued
Business review 2016 - continued

Notwithstanding the prudent investment policy adopted by MAPFRE MSV Life, past
performance is no guarantee for the future. Although MAPFRE MSV Life’s with-profits
investments have generally provided policyholders with satisfactory returns when compared with
other similar investment products, in the light of the current uncertainty in the capital markets,
investment returns could fluctuate further. Fair value movements and investment returns impinge
directly on the rates of bonuses declared by the Company. Regular Bonuses are therefore
expected to vary over the lifetime of the policy whilst Final Bonuses are likely to be highly
volatile and very dependent on the investment performance of the Company.

In 2016, the life insurance market in Malta retained strong demand patterns. We continue to see
good momentum in all our product groupings as customers continue to choose MAPFRE MSV
Life, reflecting trust in our brand and in the quality of our service proposition.

During 2016 we rebranded as MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c. reflecting better our new corporate roots
and aligning with the brand promises of our ultimate owner MAPFRE. We believe that this
investment in our branding will improve our market presence further and increase the number
and reach of our retail offerings.

Whilst we have an important role to provide our customers with prosperity and peace of mind we
acknowledge that we have a wider commitment to society by also supporting those who are not
our customers. Over the years we have developed a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
policy framework which encompasses shareholders, the environment, people, communities and
customers. Through our CSR programme we cooperate with and assist a number of public and
private institutions, NGOs, museums, foundations and associations who share similar goals and
values as us.

Training and development of our people continued to feature high on our agenda during 2016.
We value our people and seek to help them achieve their full potential by providing them with
internal and external training opportunities in Malta as well as overseas.

In order to ensure the well-being and ongoing development of our people we are continuously
reviewing and updating our HR policies and implementing new policies and employment
practices.

The Board expresses its gratitude and appreciation to the management and staff for their
commitment and contribution to another satisfactory year, to intermediaries for their continued
support and to the many loyal customers for placing their trust in MAPFRE MSV Life p.lc..
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Directors’ report - continued
Market developments

The Maltese life insurance market remains an underinsured market. Although life insurance
companies are playing an increasingly important role in Maltese household savings, comparative
studies with other European life insurance markets show that whilst the Maltese life insurance
market has grown significantly between 1996 and 2016, the per capita spend on life insurance
still trails well behind the European average. We therefore see attractive potential for an uplift in
life protection and long term savings in the local life insurance market.

Going forward we will maintain strong focus on our customers by continuously assessing our
business processes and operations in order to provide good value and excellent service. To this
end we will continue to invest and innovate in information technology. During 2016 we
progressed on our major IT programme and commenced on a series of product rollouts from old
legacy systems to new technologies. This will enable us offer superior levels of service to our
customer base. In tandem we have a number of initiatives lined up to strengthen further our
digital platform and widen our digital marketing strategy.

We also look forward to developments within the voluntary occupational pension scheme
(VOPS) area following Government’s announcement in last year’s Budget that it will introduce a
number of fiscal incentives to encourage employers to set up VOPS for their employees. We
believe we are well positioned to lead on the creation and provision of eligible schemes in this
area.

We consider our distribution footprint in Malta to be one of our key strengths. Whilst
bancassurance remains our most important distribution channel, to ensure that we provide our
customers with greater accessibility and a better service, we are continuously seeking to
strengthen all other distribution channels.

MAPFRE MSV Life continues to seek growth in its core business lines and believes that its
increasing integration with MAPFRE Group strategies will further strengthen and consolidate
business prospects.

Outlook

The outlook of the Board of Directors for 2017 is one of cautious optimism. The growth
registered in the local economy and the low levels of unemployment are expected to continue
throughout the year. Within this context, the demand for the protection, savings and investments
products is expected to remain strong.

At the global level, business and consumer confidence is showing signs of improvement. Many
believe, that this could be the beginning of a period of normalization in interest rates. Though a
gradual process of interest rate increases, would, generally speaking, be a positive economic
development, a sharp increase in interest rates could have serious negative repercussions on the
economy and the financial markets.
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Directors’ report - continued
Outlook - continued

Interest rate increases will mean higher yields but will also will lead to a reduction in the value of
the fixed income financial assets held in our portfolio, a lower demand for bank borrowing and
an increase in the demand for other competing savings and investment products and instruments.

The uncertainty surrounding Brexit and the other geo-political risks that exist in Europe are going
to be crucial for the future of the European Union. Problems in the EU, would have profound
implications on an open economy like Malta. The implications of this on our Company are
twofold. Firstly, a slowdown in the local economy would have a direct impact on the demand for
the Company's products. Secondly, the impact of uncertainty and instability on the financial
markets could bring about significant volatility in the equity markets resulting in lower
investment returns.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties are further disclosed in Note 3 dealing with
management of risk as supplemented by Note 2 relating to critical accounting estimates and
Judgements in applying accounting policies, Note 13 on intangible assets covering details on the
Company’s value of in-force business and Note 24 discussing the assumptions underlying the
technical provisions.

Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final net dividend of €11.55million (2015:
€5.00million).

Actuaries

The Company’s Approved Actuary is Mr Michael Green FIA, a director of Willis Towers
Watson PLC.
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Directors’ report - continued

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are required by the Insurance Business Act, 1998 and the Companies Act, 1995 to
prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
Company as at the end of each reporting period and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

* ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances:
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Company will continue in business as a going
concern.

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Insurance Business
Act, 1998 and with the Companies Act, 1995. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c. for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
included in the Annual Report 2016, which is published in hard-copy printed form and will be made
available on the Company’s website. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Annual Report on the website. Access to information published on the Company’s website is
available in other countries and jurisdictions, where legislation governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from requirements or practice in Malta.

Auditors

KPMG have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-appointment
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2017 and signed on j

J. Cassar White F. Navarro Lopez de Chicheri
Chairman Director Chief Executive Office

Registered Office
MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.
The Mall, Triq il-Mall
Floriana FRN1470

Malta
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

1 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c. (the
“Company”) and of the Group of which the Company is the parent, which comprise
the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the statements of profit
or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

(a) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of their financial performance and their cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU; and

(b) have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 1995
(Chapter 386, Laws of Malta) (the “Act”) and the Insurance Business Act, 1998
(Chapter 403, Laws of Malta).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in accordance with the Accountancy Profession (Code of
Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession
Act (Chapter 281, Laws of Malta) (“APA"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our
opinion.

The firm is registered as a A list of partners and directors
KPMG, a Maltese Civil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network partnership of Certified Public of the firm s available at Ppmco
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative Accountants in terms of the Building, Marina Street, Pieta,

{"KPMG International ), a Swiss entity. Accountancy Profession Act PTA 9044, Malta
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Net Long-term Business Provision and Present Value of In-Force Business
(PVIF)

[ See accounting policy notes 1.5 and 1.9(a) to the financial statements and
notes 13 and note 24 for further disclosures ]

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

The key audit matter

Our focus on this area is a result of the
significant judgement involved over
uncertain future outcomes, mainly the
ultimate total settlement value of
insurance liabilities.

The long-term business provison, net of
reinsurers’ share, represents 97 per
cent of the Company's total liabilities.

Economic assumptions, such as
investment return and associated
discount rates, and operating

assumptions such as mortality and
lapse rates, are the key inputs used to
estimate these long-term liabilities. The
valuation of such insurance liabilities
therefore requires the exercise of
significant judgement in the setting of
these assumptions.

We involved our own actuarial specialists
to assist us in performing our audit
procedures in this area, which included,
among others:

e Assessment of the appropriateness of
the assumptions and methodologies
used to determine long-term business
provision and present value of in-force
business.

e Consideration of  whether the
movements are in line with assumptions
adopted, our understanding of
developments in the business and our
expectation derived from market
experience.

* Consideration of the adequacy of the
disclosures in respect of actuarial
assumptions and estimates.

A list of partners and directors
of the firm is available at Parico
Buding, Marina Street, Pieta,
PTA 8044, Malta

The firmis registered as a
partnership of Certified Public
Accountants in terms of the
Accountancy Profession Act

KPMG, a Maltese Civil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network
of ndependent member firms affilated with KPMG International Cooperative
("KPMG International “}, a Swiss entity
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Net Long-term Business Provision and Present Value of In-Force Business
(PVIF) (continued)

[ See accounting policy notes 1.5 and 1.9(a) to the financial statements and
notes 13 and note 24 for further disclosures ]

Key Observation

During the course of our audit, and specifically in relation to our work on the
reserving methodology in relation to long-term business provision and PVIF, we
have considered the reference to ‘prudence’ in IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts which
states that an insurer (on the adoption of IFRS 4 and subsequently) need not change
its accounting policies for insurance contracts to eliminate excessive prudence (so
long as it does not introduce additional prudence). In the run-up to the full
implementation of Solvency Il and IFRS 17 (replacing IFRS 4), the Company started
a process of aligning its current IFRS reserving methodology with a more balanced
approach adopted by those forthcoming changes.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information which comprises the Directors’
Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Directors’ Report, on
which we report separately in section 2 of our report, as part of our reporting on other
legal and regulatory requirements.

The firm is registered as a Alist of pannersland director_s
KPMG, a Maltese Civil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network partnership of Certified Public of the firm is available at Ppruco
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative Accountants in terms of the Building, Marina Street, Pieta,

("KPMG International ), a Swiss entity Accountancy Profession Act PTA 9044, Malta.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

Responsibilities of Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that (a) give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and (b) are
properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Insurance
Business Act, 1998 (Chapter 403, Laws of Malta), and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. ‘Reasonable
assurance’ is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

The firm1s registered as a Alist of panners.and director;
KPMG, a Maltese Civil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network partnership of Certified Public of the firm s available at Ppmco
of indapendent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative Accountants in terms of the Building, Marina Street, Pietd,

{"KPMG International ), a Swiss entity Accountancy Profession Act PTA 9044, Malta.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
The firm is registered as a Alist of panners_and directors
KPMG, a Maltese Civil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network partnership o_f Certified Public of t.hq firm 1s available at Plomco
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative Accountants in terms of the Building, Marina Street, Pieta,

(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity Accountancy Profession Act. PTA 9044, Malta.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

2 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Auditors’ Opinion on the Directors’ Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparing a directors’ report in
accordance with the provisions of article 177 of the Act, and other applicable legal
requirements.

We are required to consider whether the information given in the directors’ report for
the accounting period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent
with those financial statements; and, if we are of the opinion that it is not, we shall
state that fact in our report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

In accordance with article 179(3) of the Act we are also required to:

(a) express an opinion on whether the directors’ report has been prepared in
accordance with the applicable legal requirements; and

(b) state whether, in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
its environment obtained in the course of our audit of the financial statements,
we have identified material misstatements in the directors' report, giving an
indication of the nature of any such misstatements.

The firm is registered as a Alist of partners and directors

KPMG, a Maltese Civil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network partnership of Certified Public of thg firms gvallable at Portico
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative Accountants in terms of the Bullding, Marina Street, Pieta,
{"KPMG International”), a Swiss entity Accountancy Profession Act. PTA 9044, Malta
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
To the Shareholders of MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.

Auditors’ Opinion on the Directors’ Report (continued)
In such regards:

(a) in our opinion, the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the
applicable legal requirements; and

(b) we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception by the Act

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where articles 179(10)
and (11) of the Act requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

® proper accounting records have not been kept by the Company; or

e the Company's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records; or

* we have not obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we require for the purpose of our audit.

The Principal authorised to sign on behalf of KPMG on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hilary Galea-Lauri.

KPMG 7 March 2017
Registered Auditors

The firm s registered as a A list of partners and directors

KPMG, a Maltese Cwvil Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network partnership of Certified Public of the firm s available at Plomco
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative Accountants in terms of the Building, Manna Street, Pieta,
{"KPMG International”), a Swiss entity Accountancy Profession Act PTA 8044, Malta.
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Statements of profit or loss
Technical account — long term business

Year ended 31 December

Group and Company

2016 2015
Notes €000 €000
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 4 272,632 220,751
Outward reinsurance premiums (2,931) (2,622)
Net premiums written 269,701 218,129
Investment income 5 36,234 47,693
Unrealised gains on investments 5 45,026 45,751
Other technical income, net of reinsurance 6 519 594
Total technical income 351,480 312,167
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid
- gross amount 141,343 106,454
- reinsurers’ share (574) (737)
140,769 105,717
Change in the provision for claims
- gross amount 3,963 3,191
- reinsurers’ share (368) 261
3,595 3,452
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance 4 144,364 109,169
Change in other technical provisions, net of reinsurance
Insurance contracts 9,906 18,341
Investment contracts with DPF 167,449 153,967
Change in other technical provisions, net of reinsurance 177,355 172,308
Net operating expenses 4 15,116 12,902
Investment expenses and charges 5 3,905 3,694
Total technical charges 340,740 298,073
Balance on the long term business technical account 10,740 14,094

The notes on pages 21 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of profit or loss
Non-technical accounts

Balance on the long term business
technical account

Investment income

Investment expenses and charges

Other income — commission receivable

Other charges — administrative expenses

Profit before tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Earnings per share (cents)

Notes

11

Statements of comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Movement in value of in-force business,
net of deferred tax

Total comprehensive income

Note

13

Year ended 31 December
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
10,740 14,094 10,740 14,094
752 1,421 751 1,423
)] (6) )] (6
572 633 - R
(505) (565) 49) 80)
11,552 15,577 11,435 15,431
(2,961) (5,487) (2,920) (5,436)
8,591 10,090 8,515 9,995
39¢2 46¢1
Year ended 31 December
Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
8,591 10,090 8,515 9,995
6,527 (2,340) 6,527 (2,340)
15,118 7,750 15,042 7,655

The notes on pages 21 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of financial position

As at 31 December

Group Company
Notes 2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
ASSETS
Intangible assets 13 64,209 57,369 64,202 57,360
Tangible assets - property, plant and equipment 14 5,735 5,776 5,735 5,776
Investments:
Land and buildings - investment property 15 87,993 84,101 87,993 84,101
Investment in group undertaking 16 - - 466 466
Investments in associated undertakings 17 33,903 28,140 33,903 28,140
Other investments 18 1,658,490 1,516,105 1,658,483 1,516,099
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 24 1,589 2,347 1,589 2,347
Income tax receivable 2,912 3,324 2,902 3,275
Debtors 20 10 - 171 383
Prepayments and accrued income 20 13,184 13,022 13,041 12,863
Cash at bank and in hand 21 62,368 33,693 61,527 32,802
Total assets 1,930,393 1,743,877 1,930,012 1,743,612
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to
shareholders of the Company
Called up share capital 22 54,750 54,750 54,750 54,750
Other reserves 23 53,782 47,255 53,782 47,255
Retained earnings 51,788 48,197 51,484 47,969
Total equity 160,320 150,202 160,016 149,974
Technical provisions:
[nsurance contracts 24 539,528 529,906 539,528 529,906
Investment contracts with DPF 24 1,141,334 970,764 1,141,334 970,764
Investment contracts without DPF 25 54,141 62,785 54,141 62,785
Provision for other risks and charges:

Deferred tax liability 19 25,386 22,478 25,384 22,476
Derivative financial instruments 18 320 - 320 -
Creditors 27 6,439 4,648 6,438 4,633
Accruals and deferred income 27 2,925 3,094 2,851 3,074
Total liabilities 1,770,073 1,593,675 1,769,996 1,593,638
Total equity and liabilities 1,930,393 1,743,877 1,930,012 1,743,612

The notes on pages 21 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements. The financial
statements on pages 15 to 87 were authorised for issue by the B n 7 March 2017 and were
signed on its behalf by:

(%vm\ = -

J. Cassar White F. Navarro Lopez de Chicheri D.G. Curmi
/ Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statements of changes in equity

Group

Balance at 1 January 2015

Comprehensive income
Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income -
item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Decrease in value of in-force business

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2016

Comprehensive income
Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income -
item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Increase in value of in-force business

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2016

The notes on pages 21 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements

Notes Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
54,750 49,595 42,787 147,132
2 2 10,090 10,0?0_
23 (2,340) - (2,340)
- (2,340) 10,090 7,750
12 - - (4,680) (4,680)
_ 54,750 47,255 48,197 150,202 |
5v4,750 47,255 48,197 150,202
- - 8,591 8,591
23 - 6,527 - 6,527
- 6,527 8,591 15,118
12 - - (5,000) (5,000)
54,750 53,782 51,788 160,320




MAPFRE MSV Life p.L.c.

Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Statements of changes in equity - continued

Company Notes Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
Balance at 1 January 2015 54,750 49,595 42,654 146,999
Comprehensive income
Profit for the financial year - - 9,995 9,995
Other comprehensive income -
item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Decrease in value of in-force business 23 - (2,340) B (2,340)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (2,340) 9,995 7,655
Transactions with owners
Dividends 12 - - (4,680) (4,680)
Balance at 31 December 2015 54,750 47,255 47,969 149,974
Balance at 1 January 2016 54,750 47,255 47,969 149,974
Comprehensive income
Profit for the financial year - - 8,515 8,515
Other comprehensive income -
item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Increase in value of in-force business 23 - 6,527 - 6,527
Total comprehensive income for the year - 6,527 8,515 15,042
Transactions with owners
Dividends 12 - (5,000) (5,000)
Balance at 31 December 2016 54,750 53,782 51,484 160,016

The notes on pages 21 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statements

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Dividends received

Interest received

Taxation received/(paid)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment property

Purchase of other financial investments
Purchase of associate undertaking
Disposal of investment property

Disposal of other financial investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Cash used in financing activities

Net movement in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

28

13
14
15
18
17
15

12

21

Year ended 31 December

Company

Group
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
109,216 96,061 109,265 95,776
7,803 6,331 7,803 6,331
26,046 29,609 26,045 29,608
665 4,780 667 4,845
143,730 136,781 143,780 136,560
(776) (1,795) (776) (1,795)
(321) (266) (321) (266)
(659) (3,741) (659) (3,741)
(1,104,756) (984,190)  (1,104,755) (984,188)
- (1 - N
98 - 98 -
996,359 849,571 996,358 849,573
(110,055) (140,422) (110,055) (140,418)
(5,000) (4,680) (5,000) (4,680)
(5,000) (4,680) (5,000) (4,680)
28,675 (8,321) 28,725 (8,538)
33,693 42,014 32,802 41,340
62,368 33,693 61,527 32,802

The notes on pages 21 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements.

20



MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Notes to the financial statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

1.1 General information

MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c. (“the Company”), formerly MSV Life p.l.c., and its subsidiary,
(together forming “the Group™) are licensed under the Insurance Business Act, 1998 to
transact long term insurance business and under the Investment Services Act, 1994 to
provide investment services.

The Group offers a range of individual life insurance and investment contracts that can be
broadly classified into long term contracts and linked long term contracts. Long term
contracts consist mainly of life protection and/or savings contracts. Linked long term
contracts are essentially investment contracts that are intended to provide customers with
asset management solutions for their savings and retirement needs. Linked long term
contracts are more commonly referred to as unit linked contracts.

The following is the current product portfolio of the Group:

* Term contracts — these products are pure insurance contracts where the only obligation
of the Group towards the insured is the payment of a death benefit, if the death occurs
whilst the policy is in force.

* With profits life contracts — these insurance contracts combine a discretionary
participation feature (DPF) where the obligation of the Group towards the insured also
includes an annual discretionary investment return (bonus declaration).

e Investment contracts with DPF — these are substantially savings products where the
annual investment return is also discretionary (declared bonus rate).

e Unit linked capital guaranteed contracts — these are unit linked products where the
obligation of the Group towards the insured includes a guaranteed element of return
and capital.

e  Other unit linked investment contracts — these are unit linked products where the
obligation of the Group towards the insured is represented by the value of the
underlying units.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, the Insurance Business Act, 1998 and the
Companies Act, 1995.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of property, investment property and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivatives) at fair value through profit or loss.

As permitted by IFRS 4, the Group continues to apply existing accounting practices for
value of in-force business, insurance and participating investment contracts, modified as
appropriate to comply with the IFRS framework and applicable standards. Further details
are given in the respective accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the above reporting framework
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note
2.

The statement of financial position is organised in increasing order of liquidity, with
additional disclosures on the current or non-current nature of the Group’s assets and
liabilities provided within the notes to the financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2016

In 2016, the Group adopted new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting period beginning on 1 January
2016. The adoption of these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU
did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet
effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been
published by the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2016. The Group
has not early adopted these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU
and the Group’s directors are of the opinion that, with the exception of the standards
discussed below, there are no requirements that will have a possible significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements in the period of initial application.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Basis of preparation - continued

The Group is considering the implications of the below standards on the Company’s
financial results and position, and the timing of their adoption, taking cognisance of the
endorsement process by the European Commission.

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. It retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through OCI and fair value through P&L. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair
value in OCI not recycling. For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification
and measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. IFRS 9
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption
permitted. The Group, having its activities ‘predominantly connected with insurance’, is
considering the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 for annual reporting periods beginning
before | January 2021, and deferring its application to be concurrent with the effective date
of IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, being 1 January 2021.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ was issued in May 2014 and establishes
a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognising revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or
modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Group is considering the implications of
the standard and its impact on the Group’s financial results and position, together with the
timing of its adoption.

1.3 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiary undertakings

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the
Company and its subsidiary (or group) undertaking drawn up to 31 December each year.
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.3 Consolidation - continued
(a) Subsidiary undertakings - continued

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the
Group and are no longer consolidated from the date of disposal.

On acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking, all of its assets and liabilities that exist at the
date of acquisition are recorded at their fair values reflecting their condition at that date.
All intercompany transactions between group companies are eliminated. Where necessary,
accounting policies for subsidiaries are changed to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. The Group’s undertaking is noted in Note 16.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when
control is lost.

(b) Associated undertakings

Interests in associated undertakings that are allocated to the insurance and investment
contract liabilities are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
They are accounted for in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
described in Note 1.13. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, over the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. A list of the Group’s
associated undertakings is set out in Note 17.

1.4 Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
‘functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in euro, which is the
Company’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies have been converted into the functional currency at the
rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, mainly arising on equities held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

24



MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.5 Insurance and investment contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such
contracts may also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Group defines as
significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an
insured event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did
not occur.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant
insurance risk.

A number of insurance and investment contracts contain a discretionary participation
feature (DPF). This feature entitles the holder to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed
benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:

- that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;

- whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Group; and

- that are based on realised and/or unrealised investment returns on underlying assets
held by the Group.

Local statutory regulations and the terms and conditions of these contracts set out the bases
for the determination of the amounts on which the additional discretionary benefits are
based (the DPF eligible surplus), and within which the Group may exercise its discretion as
to the quantum and timing of their payment to contract holders, also considering the advice
of the Approved Actuary.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF are classified into three main
categories depending on the duration of risk and whether or not the terms and conditions
are fixed.

(1) Long term insurance contracts

These contracts insure events associated with human life (for example death or survival)
over a long and fixed duration. The guaranteed and fixed element for these contracts
relates to the sum assured, i.e. the benefit payable on death or maturity.

Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder.
Premiums are shown before deduction of commission, and are inclusive of policy fees
receivable. A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future
is recorded when the premiums are recognised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.5 Insurance and investment contracts - continued
(b) Recognition and measurement - continued
(i) Long term insurance contracts - continued

Maturity claims are charged to income as incurred when due for payment, at which date
they cease to be included within the calculation of the liability. Surrenders are accounted
for as incurred when paid or, if earlier, on the date when the policy ceases to be included
within the calculation of the liability. Death claims are accounted for when notified.
Claims payable include related claims handling costs.

(ii) Long term insurance contracts with DPF

For traditional life insurance contracts, the liability is calculated on the basis of a prudent
prospective actuarial method, using assumptions regarding mortality, maintenance expenses
and investment income, and includes a margin for adverse deviations. Additionally,
liabilities under unit-linked life insurance contracts reflect the value of assets held within
unitised investment pools. The liability is recalculated at each reporting date. It is
determined by the Group’s Approved Actuary following his annual investigation of the
financial condition of the Group’s long term business as required under the Insurance
Business Act, 1998. The above method of calculation satisfies the minimum liability
adequacy test required by IFRS 4.

These contracts further combine a DPF that entitles the holder to receive a bonus as
declared by the Group from the DPF eligible surplus.

Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder.
Premiums are shown before deduction of commission, and are inclusive of policy fees
receivable.

Maturity claims are charged to income as incurred when due for payment, at which date
they cease to be included within the calculation of the liability. Surrenders are accounted
for as incurred when paid or, if earlier, on the date when the policy ceases to be included
within the calculation of the liability. Death claims are accounted for when notified.
Claims payable include related claims handling costs.

Bonuses charged to the long term business technical account in a given year comprise:

(i) new reversionary bonuses declared in respect of that year, which are provided within
the calculation of the respective liability;

(i1) terminal bonuses paid out to policyholders on maturity and included within claims
paid; and

(iii) terminal bonuses declared at the Group’s discretion and included within the respective
liability.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.5 Insurance and investment contracts - continued
(b) Recognition and measurement - continued
(i) Long term insurance contracts with DPF - continued

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded
when the premiums are recognised. The liability is determined as the sum of the expected
discounted value of the future cash flows based on bonuses consistent with the bonus policy
and prudent rates of future investment return, expenses and mortality, and includes margins
for adverse deviations. The liability is recalculated at each reporting date. The liability is
determined by the Group’s Approved Actuary following his annual investigation of the
financial condition of the Group’s long term business as required under the Insurance
Business Act, 1998. The above method of calculation satisfies the liability adequacy test
required by IFRS 4.

(iii) Investment contracts with DPF

These contracts do not expose the Group to significant insurance risk. They contain a DPF
that entitles the holder to receive a bonus as declared by the Group from the DPF eligible
surplus.

Recognition and measurement principles are the same as for insurance contracts with DPF
as described above. Additionally, liabilities under unit-linked investment contracts reflect
the value of assets held within unitised investment pools.

(¢) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers, under which the Group is compensated
for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the classification
requirements for insurance contracts, as described above, are classified as reinsurance
contracts held.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held, are
recognised as reinsurers’ share of technical provisions or receivables from reinsurers
(unless netted off against amounts payable to reinsurers). These assets consist of short term
balances due from reinsurers (classified within receivables), as well as longer term
receivables (classified as reinsurers’ share of technical provisions) that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from, or due to, reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on a regular basis. If there is
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment
loss in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.5 Insurance and investment contracts - continued
(c) Reinsurance contracts held - continued

The Group gathers objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the process
described for financial assets held at amortised cost. The impairment loss is also calculated
following the same method described for these financial assets. These processes are
described in Note 1.14.

(d) Investment contracts without DPF
The Group issues investment contracts without DPF.

Premium arising on these contracts is classified as a financial liability — investment
contracts without DPF. The fair value of these contracts is dependent on the fair value of
underlying financial assets. These are designated at inception as fair value through profit or
loss. The fair value of a unit linked financial liability is determined using the current unit
values that reflect the fair values of the financial assets linked to the financial liability. This
is multiplied by the number of units attributed to the contract holder at the reporting date.

If the investment contract is subject to a surrender option, the fair value of the financial
liability is never less than the amount payable on surrender, where applicable. Other
benefits payable are also accrued as appropriate.

1.6 Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met as described below.

Rendering of services

Premium recognition is described in Note 1.5 dealing with insurance contracts and
investment contracts with DPF.

Revenue arising from the issue of investment contracts without DPF and other related
services offered by the Group, is recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered.

Fees include investment management fees arising from services rendered in conjunction
with the issue and management of investment contracts where the Group actively manages
the consideration received from its customers to fund a return that is based on the
investment profile that the customer selected on origination of the instrument. The Group
recognises these fees on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the contract.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.6 Revenue - continued

The Group charges its customers for management and other related services using the
following different approaches:

- Front-end fees are charged to the client on inception. The consideration received is
deferred as a liability and recognised over the life of the contract on a straight-line
basis.

- Regular fees are charged to the customer periodically (monthly, quarterly, half yearly
or annually) either directly or by making a deduction from invested funds. Regular
charges billed in advance are recognised on a straight-line basis over the billing period.

Other revenue receivable by the Group mainly comprises commission or trailer fees
receivable on account of investment or other services provided in an intermediary capacity
which is accounted for on an accruals basis.

1.7 Investment return

Investment return includes dividend income, gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (including interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss), other net fair value movements, interest income from financial assets not classified as
fair value through profit or loss and rent receivable, and is net of investment expenses,
charges and interest payable.

(a) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(b) Other net fair value gains or losses from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Other gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss’ category are presented in profit or loss within unrealised gains
or losses on investments in the year in which they arise.

(c) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets not classified as fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using the effective interest method.

(d) Rent receivable

Rent receivable from investment property is accounted for on an accruals basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant lease agreements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.7 Investment return - continued

The investment return is apportioned between the technical and non-technical profit or loss
on a basis which takes into account that technical provisions are fully backed by
investments and that the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and working
capital are financed in their entirety from shareholders’ funds.

1.8 Leases

Property leased out under operating leases are included in investment property. Rental
income is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the lease to which it relates.

1.9 Intangible assets
(a) Value of in-force business

The value of in-force business is determined by the directors after considering the advice of
the Company’s Approved Actuary. The valuation represents the discounted value of
projected future transfers to shareholders from contracts in force at the year end, after
making a provision for taxation. In determining this valuation, assumptions relating to
future mortality, persistence and levels of expenses are based on experience of the type of
business concerned.

Gross investment returns and asset allocations assumed vary depending upon the mix of
investments held by the Company and expected market conditions. Annual movements in
the value of the in-force business are credited or debited to other comprehensive income.
Note 13 contains further information in relation to this asset.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised using the straight-
line method over their useful lives, not exceeding a period of five years. All costs
associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred.

(c) Deferred policy acquisition costs

Incremental costs that are incurred in acquiring new investment contracts without DPF are
capitalised as deferred acquisition costs (DAC).
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.9 Intangible assets - continued
(c) Deferred policy acquisition costs - continued

The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contracts as follows:

- For long term investment contracts with a fixed maturity date, DAC is amortised over
the life of the contract.

- For long term investment contracts with no fixed date of maturity, DAC is amortised
over the estimated life of the contract. This basis is reviewed periodically with
reference to the historical experience of surrenders for these contracts.

1.10 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at historical cost. Freehold land and
buildings, are subsequently shown at fair value based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Valuations are carried out on a regular basis such that the carrying amount of property does
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the re-
valued amount of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to
other comprehensive income and shown as a revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged in other
comprehensive income and debited against the revaluation reserve directly in equity; all
other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.10 Property, plant and equipment - continued
Freehold land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. Depreciation on

other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 100 years
Leasehold improvements 10 - 40 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting year. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to the assets are transferred to retained
earnings.

1.11 Investment property

Freehold and leasehold properties treated as investment property principally comprise
office and other commercial buildings that are held for long term rental yields and that are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as discounted cash flow projections or recent prices in
less active markets. These valuations are reviewed annually by an independent valuation
expert. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair
value. Changes in fair values are reported in profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting purposes.

1.12 Investment in group undertakings

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in group undertakings are accounted
for by the cost method of accounting, less impairment. The dividend income from such
investments is included in profit or loss in the accounting year in which the Company’s
rights to receive payment of any dividend is established. On disposal of an investment, the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or
credited to profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.13 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets (other than its investment in subsidiary) into the
following two categories: a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and b) loans
and receivables. The directors determine the appropriate classification of financial assets at
the time of purchase and re-evaluate such designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets that are held to match insurance and investment contract liabilities
are designated at inception as fair value through profit or loss to eliminate or
significantly reduce the accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise from
measuring insurance assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and losses on them,
on different basis. Financial assets that are attributable to shareholders are designated
at inception as fair value through profit or loss if they are part of a group of
investments that is managed on a portfolio basis, and whose performance is evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis to the Group’s Board in accordance with
a documented investment strategy.

(b) Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, other than those that the Group has designated at
fair value through profit or loss. They include, inter alia, receivables and cash and
cash equivalents in the statement of financial position as well as other financial
investments classified as loans and receivables within Note 18.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. All investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus, in the case of all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition.
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or where they have been transferred and the Group has also transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations. This includes listed equity securities and quoted debt instruments on major
exchanges. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group is the
current bid price.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.13 Financial assets - continued

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the market for a financial asset is not active, the
Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same and
discounted cash flow analysis.

Derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, and other valuation techniques, as
appropriate. Subsequent changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive, and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The Group enters into currency forward contracts to hedge the foreign exchange risk
arising on its investments denominated in a foreign currency. These transactions provide
effective economic hedges under the Group’s risk management policies. However hedge
accounting under the specific rules in IAS 39 is not required because the change in the
value of the hedged financial instrument is recognised in profit or loss.

1.14 Impairment of assets
(a) Impairment of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or Group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (“a loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtors;
a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;
it becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flow from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.14 Impairment of assets - continued
(a) Impairment of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss- continued

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
improved credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life and are not subject to amortisation are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable and independent cash flows (cash-generating units).

1.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set-off the recognised amounts and it intends to settle them on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.16 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, which is the date the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and
derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire.

Borrowings are recognised initially at their fair value, net of incremental direct transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of incremental direct transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.

1.17 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised, in respect of, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at face value. In
the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at
call for operational purposes with banks.

1.18 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

1.19 Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
period in which an obligation to pay a dividend is established.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course
of preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree
which would warrant their description as critical in terms of the requirements of IAS
1,’Presentation of financial statements’, other than the following:

- Value of in-force business

The value of in-force business is a projection of future shareholders’ cash flows expected
from contracts in force at the year end, appropriately adjusted for taxation and discounted
by a risk adjusted discount rate. In assessing the projected cash flows, the directors assume
a long term view of a maintainable level of investment return and fund size. This valuation
requires the use of a number of assumptions relating to future mortality, persistence, levels
of expenses, investment returns and asset allocations over the longer term.

This valuation is inherently uncertain and assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis as
experience and the reliability of the estimation process develop.

Details of key assumptions, and sensitivity of this intangible asset are provided in Note 13.
The impact of a change to key assumptions supporting the value of in-force business is
disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies -
continued

- Insurance and participating investment contract liabilities

The technical provisions in respect of long term contracts and linked long term contracts
are subject to an annual statutory valuation overseen by the Approved Actuary based on
data and information provided by the Group.

Different principles and valuation methodologies are adopted depending on the type and
generation of products. The key assumptions used in determining the technical provisions
in respect of insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF are described in Note
24 to the financial statements.

Management of risk

The Group is a party to contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This
section summarises these risks and the way the Group manages them.

3.1 Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs
and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is fortuitous.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing
and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that
the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are fortuitous and the actual number and amount of claims and
benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using statistical
techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the
relative variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified
portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the
portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the
type of insurance risk accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently
large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type
and amount of risk, and lack of geographical spread. The Group is largely exposed to
insurance risk in one geographical area, Malta.

38



MAPFRE MSYV Life p.l.c.
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Management of risk - continued
3.1 Insurance risk - continued

Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant factor that could increase
the overall frequency of claims are epidemics or wide spread changes in lifestyle resulting
in earlier or more claims than expected.

At present these risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured
by the Group. However, undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the
severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no
mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the insurance risk accepted. For contracts with
DPF, the participating nature of the contracts results in a portion of the insurance risk being
reduced over the term of policy. Investment contracts with DPF carry negligible insurance
risk.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance
arrangements. The underwriting strategy is intended to ensure that the risks underwritten
are well diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. Medical selection
is also included in the Group’s underwriting procedures with premiums varied to reflect the
health condition and life expectancy of the applicants.

The Group has reinsurance protection in place to cover death claims. The type of
reinsurance cover and the level of retention for each risk are based on the Group’s internal
risk management assessment, which takes account of the nature of the risk covered and the
sum assured. The reinsurance program is approved by the Board annually. The reinsurance
arrangements in place include a mix of quota share, facultative and catastrophe protection,
which limits the liability of the Group to any one individual life or event. The Group’s
reinsurance is placed with listed multinational reinsurance companies whose rating is not
less than BBB+.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premiwm receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long
term insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long term changes in overall
levels of mortality, and the variability in contract holder behaviour. The Group uses
appropriate base tables of standard mortality according to the type of contract being
written. The Group does not take credit for future lapses in determining the liability for
long term contracts.

Further detail on the process for estimation is provided in Note 24 to these financial
statements.
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3.2 Financial risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities and
insurance and reinsurance assets and liabilities. In particular, the key risk is that in the long
term, the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising
from its insurance and investment contracts. The components of financial risks for the
Group are market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, equity price risk
and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks arise from open positions in
interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market movements. The risks that the Group primarily faces due to the nature of its assets
and liabilities are interest rate risk and equity price risk.

The Group has developed its Asset/Liability management framework to support the manner
in which these risk positions are managed. It actively manages its assets to achieve a
competitive rate of return within risk objectives delineated by asset liquidity measures,
duration targets and credit quality parameters. The Investment Committee reviews and
approves investment strategies on a periodic basis ensuring that assets are managed
efficiently and within approved risk mandates.

(a) Market risk
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Insurance and investment contracts with DPF have benefit payments that are fixed and
guaranteed at the inception of the contract (for example, sum assured), or as annual
discretionary bonuses are declared. The Group’s primary financial risk on these contracts
is the risk that interest income and capital redemptions from the financial assets backing the
liabilities are insufficient to fund the guaranteed benefits payable.

With the exception of the unit linked capital guaranteed products, the Group does not
guarantee a positive fixed rate of return to its policyholders at the inception of a contract.
The declaration of discretionary bonuses is guided by the bonus philosophy of the Board of
Directors. Once a reversionary bonus is declared, it is guaranteed to be paid in full at
maturity or on the prior death of the life assured.

The bonus philosophy considers historic and current rates of return generated by the
Group’s investment portfolio as well as the Group’s expectations for future investment
returns. The impact of interest rate risk is mitigated by the presence of the DPF. These
guaranteed benefits increase as discretionary benefits are declared and allocated to contract
holders.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(a) Market risk - continued

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk - continued

In the case of the unit linked capital guaranteed products, the Group has guaranteed a fixed
return for certain periods of each contract. Subsequent to the expiry of the guarantee, the
policyholders will receive a return analogous to that being generated by the underlying
units. In addition, the Group has also guaranteed any shortfall in the carrying value of the
underlying assets on maturity as compared to the initial capital investment. In order to
mitigate this risk, the Group has contracted a back to back guarantee with international
financial service providers, which ensures that any shortfall on the guaranteed capital
investment return, will be compensated by these providers. On entering this agreement the
Group considered the reputation and credit worthiness of these partners taking into account,
amongst other factors, the credit rating as graded by international rating agencies. The
Group monitors this rating regularly.

All insurance and investment contracts with a DPF feature can be surrendered before
maturity for a cash surrender value that is always less than the actual contract liability.
Cash surrender values are determined at the discretion of the Group, and can be varied
from time to time. The primary factor affecting the level of cash surrender value is the
investment return earned on the assets of the Group. In addition, the cash surrender value is
affected by the expenses, tax and the cost of risk benefits (such as life cover) borne by the
Group, deductions to provide a return to shareholders, as well as profits and losses arising
on other contracts. The expenses include payment of commission, medical report expenses,
office administration costs and other expenses incurred in the setting up and maintenance
of the contract. At most, the cash surrender value will be the amount of the actual liability
reduced by the surrender charge (where applicable).

Furthermore, in respect of all contracts with DPF (with the exception of some contracts that
have been in force more than a certain number of years), the Group reserves the right to
increase the level of the surrender charge and, if necessary, to apply a Market Value
Reduction (MVR). A MVR is a deduction which the Group may make on surrender of a
contract with DPF. For example, if the underlying investment return, after allowing for
expenses, tax, risk benefits, shareholder returns and adjustment for profits or losses on
other contracts is less than the return already provided for in the form of reversionary
bonuses, the Group may decide to apply a MVR.
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Management of risk - continued

3.2 Financial risk - continued

(a) Market risk - continued

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk - continued

The MVR serves to protect the interests of remaining investors and the Group, who would
otherwise have to subsidise the amount paid on surrendering contracts. The Group does not
apply a standard percentage deduction on all contracts but determines the deduction to
apply to each individual surrender at the time the surrender is made. The amount depends
on a number of factors including the length of time the contract has been in force, and the
underlying investment return over the same time period. There will be no MVR at maturity
or on death. This means that at maturity or on death the payment of the actual contract
liability is guaranteed. The cash surrender value may also be less than the total amount of
premiums paid up to the date of surrender. The Group is not required to, and does not,
measure the effect of the above embedded derivative at fair value.

The Group matches its insurance liabilities with a diversified portfolio of assets which
includes equity, debt securities and property. The return from debt and cash based
securities is subject to interest rate risk.

In general, the Group is exposed to risk associated with the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates. Assets/liabilities issued at variable rates generally
expose the Group to cash flow interest risk. Assets/liabilities issued at fixed rates generally
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Group investment parameters exist to limit
exposure to any one particular issuer and any one particular security. Periodic reports are
prepared at portfolio, legal entity and asset class level that are circulated to the Group’s key
management personnel. Note 18 incorporates maturity information with respect to the
Group’s and Company’s investments.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued

(a) Market risk - continued

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk - continued

The total assets and liabilities subject to interest rate risk are the following:

Assets

Assets at floating interest rates
Assets at fixed interest rates

Reconciled to the notes to the financial statements as follows:

Loans and receivables (Note 18)

Debt securities (Note 18)

A component of equity securities and units in unit
trusts (Note 18)

Interest bearing cash and cash equivalents
(Note 21)

Liabilities
Net long term business provision excluding
linked long term contracts (Note 24)

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
119,167 94,639 118,326 93,752
954,462 879,675 954,462 879,675
1,073,629 974,314 1,072,788 973,427
205,970 182,882 205,970 182,882
787,067 739,200 787,067 739,200
19,514 18,955 19,514 18,955
61,078 33,277 60,237 32,390
1,073,629 974,314 1,072,788 973,427
1,621,331 1,445,131 1,621,331 1,445,131
1,621,331 1,445,131 1,621,331 1,445,131

Interest rate risk in relation to linked liabilities for contracts that also combine a
discretionary feature, amounting to €44.08m (2015: €42.93m), has been excluded as the
directors consider the exposure to be insignificant.
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3.  Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(a) Market risk - continued
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk - continued
In managing its portfolio, the Group entered into fixed income security futures contracts.
Accordingly, it is exposed to movements in interest rates in the respective markets of the

underlying, which comprise short, medium and long-term sovereign debt. The notional
amount of futures contracts outstanding is shown below:

Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
Long positions
- Federal Republic of Germany 41,425 23,694
Short positions
- Federal Republic of Germany 36,077 24,708
- United Kingdom Government 1,327 3,169
- United States Government 5,259 11,428
42,663 39,305

Up to the reporting date, the Group did not have any hedging policy with respect to interest
rate risk other than as described in note 1.13 above.

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates how changes in the fair value of
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates at the reporting date.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(a) Market risk - continued

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk - continued

At 31 December 2016, had interest rates been 100 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been €0.46m lower (2015:
€0.40m higher). An increase of 100 basis points, with all other variables held constant,
would have resulted in pre-tax profits being €0.14m lower (2015: €0.61m higher). The
above sensitivity considers the impact of changes in interest rates on liabilities and fixed
income and floating interest rate asset values; although in the case that the reduced interest
rate would be negative a floor of 0% is applied and the change in the asset value calculated
accordingly.

(ii) Equity price risk

The Group’s financial assets are susceptible to the risk of decreases in value due to changes
in the prices of equities. The directors manage the risk of price volatility by entering into a
diverse range of investments including equities and collective investment schemes. In
addition the Group’s investments are spread geographically in a diverse number of
different Zone A and EEA countries. The Group has an active Investment Committee that
has established a set of investment guidelines that is also approved by the Board of
Directors. Investments over prescribed limits are directly approved by the Board. These
guidelines provide parameters for investment management, including contracts with
external portfolio managers. They include, inter alia, reference to an optimal spread of the
investment portfolio, assessment of equity issuers and maximum exposures by the Group
to any one issuer and its connected parties (with the exception of investments in
Government paper). These parameters also consider solvency restrictions imposed by the
Regulator.

Management structures are in place to monitor all the Group’s overall market positions on
a frequent basis. Reports are prepared at portfolio, legal entity and asset class level that are
circulated to the Group’s key management personnel. These are also reviewed on a
monthly basis by the Investment Committee and on a quarterly basis by the Board.

The total assets subject to equity price risk are the following:

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

€000 €000 €000 €000

Assets subject to equity price risk 582,733 497,414 582,726 497,408
Reconciled to the notes to the financial statements as follows:

Investment in associated undertakings (Note 17) 33,903 28,140 33,903 28,140

A component of equity securities and units in
unit trusts (Note 18) 548,830 469,274 548,823 469,268
582,733 497,414 582,726 497,408
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Management of risk - continued

3.2 Financial risk - continued

(a) Market risk - continued

(ii) Equity price risk - continued

In managing its portfolio, the Group also entered into equity index futures contracts and

accordingly it is exposed to movements in the price of the underlying equity index. The
notional amount of futures contracts outstanding is shown below:

Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
Long positions
- European equity indices 2,818 1,969

In the case of assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities the exposure is carried by the
contract holder. In the case of capital guaranteed products any shortfalls guaranteed upon
maturity are mitigated by a back to back guarantee with international financial service
providers as further referred in 3.2 (a) (i).

The sensitivity for equity price risk illustrates how changes in the fair value of equity
securities will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual equity issuer, or factors affecting all similar
equity traded in the market.

Given the investment strategy and asset mix of the Group and Company a 10% positive or
negative movement in equity prices is considered to be an appropriate benchmark for
sensitivity purposes. An increase and a decrease of 10% in equity prices, with all other
variables held constant, would result in a positive impact of €0.16m (2015: €4.18m) and a
negative impact of €0.16m (2015: €4.19m) respectively, on the pre-tax profit for the year.
The above sensitivity includes the impact of changes in equity returns on liabilities and
assets.

(iii) Currency risk

The Group’s liabilities are substantially denominated in euro. The Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk arises primarily from equity securities denominated in major foreign
currencies. The Group hedges its foreign currency denominated debt securities using
foreign exchange forward contracts in order to mitigate the risk that principal cash flows
for these investments fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to foreign currencies other than euro.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(a) Market risk - continued

(iii) Currency risk - continued

Group and Company
31 December 2016
Notional
Net exposure amount of
before currency Net exposure
hedging derivatives after hedging
€000 €000 €000
Currency of exposure:
uUsh 24,456 9,177 15,279
CHF 27,814 - 27,814
GBP 10,194 7311 2,883
SEK 7,075 - 7,075
DKK 5,303 - 5,303
Others 10,846 10,951 (105)
85,688 27,439 58,249
31 December 2015
Notional
Net exposure amount of
before currency Net exposure
hedging derivatives after hedging
€000 €000 €000
Currency of exposure:
USD 32,744 18,523 14,221
CHF 31,250 - 31,250
GBP 7,374 3,770 3,604
SEK 8,098 - 8,098
DKK 13,181 7,522 5,659
Others 3413 1,329 2,084
96,060 31,144 64,916

Within the table above, €50.23m of the unhedged exposure relates to equity investments
(2015: €56.82m). Due to an increasingly globalised economy, the Group’s equity
investments are diversified across various currencies. The directors consider that the
exposure to currency risk is appropriately captured in the equity price risk sensitivity (Note
3.2 (a) (ii)). Any residual currency exposure relating to non-equity investments is not
considered to be significant.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of decreases in value when counterparties are not capable of fulfilling
their obligations or when changes in their credit status take place.

The Group has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas where the Group is exposed to credit risk are:

Investments and cash and cash equivalents

Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities

Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid
Counterparty risk with respect to forward foreign exchange contracts.

The Group places limits on the level of credit risk undertaken from the main categories of
financial instruments. These limits also take due consideration of the solvency restrictions
imposed by the relevant Regulations. The investment strategy of the Group considers the
credit standing of the counterparty and control structures are in place to assess and monitor
these risk thresholds.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by limiting as far as possible its
exposure to a single counterparty or groups of counterparty. The Group has in place
internal control structures to assess and monitor credit exposures and risk thresholds.

The Group’s cash is placed with a number of core domestic credit institutions and
investment grade international banks, thereby reducing the concentration of counterparty
credit risk to an acceptable level.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the
Group’s liability as primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the
Group remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of
reinsurers is monitored on a quarterly basis by reviewing credit grades provided by rating
agencies and other publicly available financial information. At the same time that the
Board approves the overall reinsurance protection for the Group, it ensures that the
reinsurers’ credit rating (either Standard & Poors or equivalent) is within the parameters set
by it.

It is not normal for credit to be extended to insurance policyholders due to the nature of the
Group’s business, unless automatic policy loans are advanced up to the surrender value of
the contract (refer to Note 18).

The Group does not trade in derivative contracts, with the exception of forward contracts
and exchange traded futures. All derivative contracts are placed with quality financial
institutions within the parameters of a hedging policy approved by the Board.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(b) Credit risk - continued

The total assets bearing credit risk are the following:

Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Fair value through profit or loss
- Debt securities (Note 18) 787,067 739,200 787,067 739,200
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note 18) - 596 - 596
787,067 739,796 787,067 739,796
Loans and receivables
- Deposits with banks or credit institutions
(Note 18) 196,727 173,386 196,727 173,386
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
(Note 24) 1,589 2,347 1,589 2,347
Debtors and accrued income 9,007 8,465 9,027 8,719
Cash at bank and in hand (Note 21) 62,368 33,693 61,527 32,802
Total exposure 1,056,758 957,687 1,055,937 957,050

The assets above are analysed in the table below using Standard and Poors rating (or

equivalent).
Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
AAA 69,943 75,605 69,943 75,605
AA 94,107 49,650 94,105 49,650
A 444,662 41,187 444,659 41,061
BBB 416,003 762,352 415,051 761,461
Below BBB or not rated 32,043 28,893 32,179 29,273
1,056,758 957,687 1,055,937 957,050

The Group has no receivables that are past due or impaired. Debt securities and loans and
receivables that are not rated are primarily held with highly reputable financial institutions
holding an investment grade. The carrying amount of these assets represents the maximum

credit exposure.
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(c) Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources mainly from claims and
benefits arising from long term contracts. Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be
available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost. The Group manages its funds in
such a manner as to ensure an adequate portion of available funds to meet such calls,
principally through limits set by the Board on the minimum proportion of maturity funds
available to meet such calls. Furthermore, the Group invests a majority of its assets in
listed investments that can be readily disposed of.

The following table indicates the expected timing of cash flows arising from the maturity
of the Group’s liabilities. The expected cash flows do not consider the impact of early
surrenders.

At 31 December 2016 Expected cash flows (discounted)
0-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 >5
Year years years years years years Total
€ million

Technical provisions -
Insurance contracts
and investment contracts

with DPF 98 95 159 199 220 910 1,681
Creditors 9 - - - - - 9
107 95 159 199 220 910 1,690
At 31 December 2015 Expected cash flows (discounted)
0-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 >5
Year years years years years years Total
€ million

Technical provisions -
Insurance contracts
and investment contracts

with DPF 117 83 90 153 182 876 1,501
Creditors 8 - - - - - 8
125 83 90 153 182 876 1,509
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Management of risk - continued
3.2 Financial risk - continued
(c) Liquidity risk - continued

Expected cash flows on unit linked liabilities have not been included as the directors
consider that there is limited exposure to liquidity risk given that these are principally
backed by unit linked assets.

The table below analyses the Company’s derivative financial instruments that will be
settled on a gross basis. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

Group and Company

2016 2015
€000 €000
At 31 December
Foreign exchange contracts
- outflow (32,293) (34,324)
- inflow 32,146 34,664

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the above derivatives were due to be settled within three
months after year end.

3.3 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support its business growth
plans and comply with all regulatory requirements on an ongoing basis whilst assessing the
impact of shareholder returns on its capital employed. The Company defines capital as
shareholders’ equity.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

» comply with the obligations to hold Eligible Own Funds to cover the Solvency Capital
Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement in terms of the Insurance Business
Act, 1998, (Chapter 403, Laws of Malta) and the applicable Insurance Rules issued
under the Insurance Business Act (‘Insurance Rules’) by the Malta Financial Services
Authority (‘MFSA’);

¢ safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

e provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts
commensurate with the level of risk.
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Management of risk - continued
3.3 Capital management - continued

The Company is required to hold regulatory capital for its life assurance business in
compliance with the Insurance Rules issued by the MFSA. The minimum capital
requirements must be maintained at all times throughout the period. The Company
monitors the level of their own funds on a regular basis. Any transactions that may
potentially affect the Company’s own funds and solvency position are immediately
reported to the directors and shareholders for resolution.

The Company’s Minimum Capital Requirement Absolute Floor stands at €3,700,000 as per
paragraph 5.6.4 of Chapter 5 (‘Valuation of assets and liabilities, technical provisions, own
funds, Solvency Capital Requirement, Minimum Capital Requirement and investment
rules’) of Part B of the Insurance Rules.

The Company is sufficiently capitalised and was compliant at all times with the regulatory
capital requirements as stipulated by the MFSA which are in line with the Solvency II
requirements.

3.4 Fair value hierarchy - financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
The fair value measurement hierarchy is defined as follows:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

* Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2);

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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Management of risk - continued

3.4 Fair value hierarchy - continued

The following tables analyse the assets and liabilities carried at fair value by valuation

method:

Group - 31 December 2016

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Equity securities, units in unit trusts and
collective investment schemes

- Debt securities

Investments in associated undertakings

Total assets

Liabilities

Unit linked financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Total liabilities

Group - 31 December 2015

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Equity securities, units in unit trusts and
collective investment schemes

- Debt securities

Derivative financial instruments

Investments in associated undertakings

Total assets
Liabilities
Unit linked financial liabilities

Total liabilities

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
€'000 €000 €000 €000
665,333 87 33 665,453
787,067 - - 787,067
32,530 - 1,374 33,904
1,484,930 87 1,407 1,486,424
- 97,109 - 97,109
- 320 - 320
- 97,429 - 97,429

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
€000 €000 €000 €000
593,271 118 33 593,422
739,200 - - 739,200
256 340 - 596
26,809 - 1,331 28,140
1,359,536 458 1,364 1,361,358
- 105,198 - 105,198

- 105,198 - 105,198
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Management of risk — continued
3.4 Fair value hierarchy - continued

Company - 31 December 2016

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Equity securities, units in unit trusts and
collective investment schemes

- Debt securities

Investments in associated undertakings

Total assets

Liabilities
Unit linked financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Total liabilities

Company - 31 December 2015

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Equity securities, units in unit trusts and
collective investment schemes

- Debt securities

Derivative financial instruments

Investments in associated undertakings

Total assets

Liabilities
Unit linked financial liabilities

Total liabilities

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
€000 €000 €000 €000
665,326 87 33 665,446
787,067 - - 787,067
32,530 - 1,374 33,904
1,484,923 87 1,407 1,486,417
- 97,109 - 97,109

: 320 : 320
- 97,429 - 97,429
Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance
€000 €°000 €000 €000
593,271 118 33 593,422
739,200 - - 739,200
256 340 - 596
26,809 - 1,331 28,140
1,359,536 458 1,364 1,361,358
- 105,198 - 105,198
- 105,198 - 105,198
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Management of risk - continued
3.4 Fair value hierarchy - continued

Fair value measurements classified as Level 1 include listed equities, debt securities, units
in unit trusts and collective investments schemes.

The financial liabilities for unit linked contracts were classified as Level 2. The fair value
of these contracts is determined using the current unit values that reflect the fair values of
the financial assets (classified as Level 1) linked to the financial liability. Derivative
foreign exchange forward contracts have been classified as Level 2. The fair value of these
instruments is determined by reference to market observable forward currency rates and
interest rates.

At 31 December 2016, 0.1% (2015: 0.1%) of the financial assets measured at fair value on
a recurring basis were classified as Level 3. They constitute investment in unlisted equities
and their fair values were determined by using valuation techniques. Determination to
classify fair value instruments within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy is generally based
on the significance of the unobservable factors to the overall fair value measurement. The
Company has €1.4 million assets classified as Level 3, the valuation of which has been
determined by reference to the net assets of the underlying investment.

The analysis of investment property is included within Note 135.

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December:

Group and Company 2016
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in
Equity associated Total
securities undertakings Assets
€000 €000 €000
Opening balance 33 1,331 1,364
Total gains recognised in profit or loss - 43 43
Closing balance 33 1,374 1,407
Total gains for the period included in
profit or loss for assets held at the end of year - 43 43

55



MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c.
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Management of risk - continued

3.4 Fair value hierarchy - continued

Group and Company 2015
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in

Equity associated Total

securities undertakings Assets

€000 €000 €000

Opening balance 33 1,264 1,297

Total gains recognised in profit or loss - 67 67

Closing balance 33 1,331 1,364
Total gains for the period included in

profit or loss for assets held at the end of year - 67 67

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s and Company’s other
financial assets and liabilities approximated their fair values with the exception of financial
liabilities emanating from investment contracts with DPF. It is impracticable to determine
the fair value of these contracts due to the lack of a reliable basis to measure the future
discretionary return that is a material feature of these contracts.

Other information - technical account

In the opinion of the directors, the Group primarily operates in a single business segment
being that of long term and linked long term insurance business.

(i)  Gross premiums written

Gross premium income is made up of:

Group and Company

2016 2015

€000 €000

Direct insurance 272,632 220,751
Gross premiums written 272,632 220,751
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Other information - technical account - continued

Direct insurance is further analysed between:

Periodic premiums Single premiums
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Non-participating 10,993 10,274 - -
Participating 31,069 30,854 226,897 175,479
Linked 2,438 2,649 1,235 1,495
44,500 43,7717 228,132 176,974

In addition to the above, premium credited to liabilities in Note 25 in relation to linked
products classified as investment contracts without DPF was as follows:

Periodic premiums Single premiums

2016 2015 2016 2015

€000 €000 €000 €000
Investment contracts 1,298 1,342 568 2,366

Gross premiums written by way of direct business of insurance principally relates to
individual business. All long term contracts of insurance are concluded in or from Malta.

(ii) Reinsurance balance

The reinsurance balance, which represents the aggregate of all items relating to reinsurance
outwards mainly attributable to insurance contracts, amounted to a charge of €3.0m to the
long term business technical account for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: credit
€0.2m).
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Other information - technical account - continued

(iii) Analysis between insurance and investment contracts

Gross premiums written
Insurance contracts

Investment contracts with DPF

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance

Insurance contracts

Investment contracts with DPF

(iv) Net operating expenses

Acquisition costs
Administrative expenses
Reinsurance commissions

Allocated to:

Technical
Non-technical

Group and Company

2016 2015

€000 €000

32,769 33,217

239,863 187,534

272,632 220,751

30,894 26,954

113,470 82,215

144,364 109,169

Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
10,701 8,977 10,701 8,977
5,064 4,585 4,608 4,100
(144) (95) (144) (95)
15,621 13,467 15,165 12,982
Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
15,116 12,902 15,116 12,902
505 565 49 80
15,621 13,467 15,165 12,982

Total commission payable for direct business accounted for in the financial year amounted
to €7.77m (2015: €6.39m). €6.65m of this charge arose on investment contracts (2015:

€5.08m).
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S.

Investment return

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Rent receivable from investment property 4,757 4,756 4,757 4,756
Interest receivable from loans and receivables 1,654 2,876 1,654 2,875
Income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
- dividend income - associates 1,122 1,023 1,122 1,023
- dividend income - other 7,567 7,252 7,567 7,252
- net fair value gains and interest on bonds 62,546 76,121 62,546 76,124
Net fair value gains on investment property 3,348 1,716 3,348 1,716
Direct operating expenses arising from investment
property that generated rental income @377 (461) @77 (461)
Other investment income 1,018 1,121 1,017 1,121
Other investment expenses (3,535) (3,239) 3,535) (3,239)
Net investment return 78,100 91,165 78,099 91,167
Apportioned as follows:
Technical 77,355 89.750 77,355 89,750
Non-technical 745 1,415 744 1,417
78,100 91,165 78,099 91,167
Other technical income, net of reinsurance
Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
Investment management fees 404 431
Other 115 163
519 594
Profit before tax
Profit before tax is stated after charging:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Employee benefit expense (Note 8) 3,227 3,176 3,154 3,087
Actuarial valuation fees 228 192 228 192
Depreciation/amortisation:
- intangible assets (Note 13) 463 430 461 428
- property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 362 307 362 307
Directors’ and officers’ insurance 30 30 30 30
Reimbursement of expenses for back office
support services (Note 30) - 51 - 51
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Profit before tax - continued

The financial statements include fees, exclusive of VAT, charged by the Company’s
auditors for services rendered for the financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015
relating to the following:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Annual statutory audit 84 84 79 81
Tax advisory and compliance services - 3 - 2
IT project advisory services - 93 - 93
84 180 79 176
Employee benefit expense
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Salaries 3,067 3,026 2,998 2,941
Social security costs 160 150 156 146
3,227 3,176 3,154 3,087
The average number of persons employed during the year was:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Key management 10 8 10 8
Managerial 8 8 8 8
Technical 61 59 59 57
Administrative 3 3 3 3
Average number of employees 82 78 80 76
Tax expense
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Current tax charge 53 80 12 31
Deferred taxation charge (Note 19) 2,908 5,407 2,908 5,405
Tax expense 2,961 5,487 2,920 5,436
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9.

10.

11.

12,

Tax expense - continued

The tax expense for the year and the result of the accounting profit multiplied by the tax
rate applicable in Malta, the Group’s country of incorporation, are reconciled as follows:

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

€000 €000 €000 €000
Profit before tax 11,552 15577 11,435 15,431
Tax on profit at 35% 4,043 5,452 4,002 5,401
Tax effect of:
Property withholding tax at 8% or 10% (778) 393 (778) 393
Net impact of maintenance allowance

attributable to rental income (285) (269) (285) (269)

Other non-temporary differences 19) (89) 19) (89)
Income tax expense 2,961 5,487 2,920 5,436

Directors’ emoluments
Group and Company

2016 2015
€000 €000
Directors’ fees 47 47

The Company has paid insurance premiums of €30,000 during the year (2015: €30,000) in
respect of insurance cover in favour of its directors.
Earnings per share

Earnings per share is based on the net profit for the year divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

Group
2016 2015
Net profit attributable to shareholders (€’000) 8,591 10,090
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 21,900,000 21,900,000
Earnings per share (€) 39c2 46cl

Dividends

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a net dividend in respect of 2016 of 52c7 per
share, amounting to a total net dividend of €11.55m is to be proposed. The final dividend
declared during 2016 in respect of 2015 was €5.00m representing 22¢8 per share. The final
dividend declared during 2015 in respect of 2014 was €4.68m representing 21c4 per share.
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Intangible assets

Group

At 31 December 2014
Cost or valuation
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2015

Opening net book amount

Decrease in value of in-force business
debited to reserves (Note 23)

Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2015
Cost or valuation
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2016

Opening net book amount

Increase in value of in-force business
credited to reserves (Note 23)

Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2016
Cost or valuation
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Net book amount

Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

Deferred

Value of policy

in-force Computer acquisition

business software costs (i) Total
€000 €000 €000 €000

55,768 8,754 3,233 67,755
- (6,925) (2,486) (9,411)
55,768 1,829 747 58,344
55,768 1,829 747 58,344
(2,340) - - (2,340)
- 1.686 109 1,795
- (246) (184) (430)
53,428 3,269 672 57,369
53,428 10,440 3,342 67,210
- (7,171) (2,670) (9,841)
53,428 3,269 672 57,369
53,428 3,269 672 57,369
6,527 - . 6,527
- 738 38 776
- (312) (151) (463)
59,955 3,695 559 64,209
59,955 11,178 3,380 74,513
- (7,483) (2,821) (10,304)
59,955 3,695 559 64,209

(1)  This intangible asset relates to investment contracts without DPF only.

Amortisation of €0.28m (2015: €0.28m) is included in acquisition costs and €0.19m (2015:
€0.15m) is included in administration expenses.
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Intangible assets - continued

Company Deferred
Value of policy
in-force Computer acquisition
business software costs (i) Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
At 31 December 2014
Cost or valuation 55,768 8,474 3,233 67,475
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (6,656) (2,486) (9,142)
Net book amount 55,768 1,818 747 58,333
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount 55,768 1,818 747 58,333
Decrease in value of in-force business debited (2,340) - - (2,340)
to reserves (Note 23)
Additions - 1,686 109 1,795
Amortisation charge - (244) (184) (428)
Closing net book amount 53,428 3,260 672 57,360
At 31 December 2015
Cost or valuation 53,428 10,160 3,342 66,930
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (6,900) (2,670) 9,570)
Net book amount 53,428 3,260 672 57,360

Year ended 31 December 2016

Opening net book amount 53,428 3,260 672 57,360

Increase in value of in-force business credited 6,527 - - 6,527
to reserves (Note 23)

Additions - 738 38 776

Amortisation charge - 31Oy (151 461)

Closing net book amount 59,955 3,688 559 64,202

At 31 December 2016

Cost or valuation 59,955 10,898 3,380 74,233

Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (7,210) (2,821) (10,031)

Net book amount 59,955 3,688 559 64,202

(i)  This intangible asset relates to investment contracts without DPF only.

Amortisation of €0.28m (2015: €0.28m) is included in acquisition costs and €0.19m (2015:
€0.15m) is included in administration expenses.

Value of in-force business - assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity

The after tax value of in-force business is determined by the directors on an annual basis.
The embedded value and expected future profits of each line of business is assessed.
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13.

Intangible assets - continued

Value of in-force business - assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity -
continued

The value of in-force business is calculated using a large number of assumptions about future
experience. These assumptions concern both future economic and demographic experience.
Forecasting future experience is inherently difficult.

The company seeks to set assumptions that are at least consistent with the actual experience of
the business. As a result, the assumptions used in the assessment are revised, at least annually,
to be up to date. The process by which assumptions are changed is described in more detail
below.

With profits business is particularly sensitive to the size of the with profits fund. A 1%
increase in the size of the fund value will increase the embedded value reported by €0.21
million. A 1% fall in the size of the fund value will reduce the embedded value reported by
€0.21 million.

Unit linked business is similarly particularly sensitive to the size of the unit linked fund. A 1%
increase in the size of the fund value will increase the embedded value by €0.03 million. A 1%
fall in the size of the fund value will reduce the embedded value by €0.03 million.

Term assurance business is particularly sensitive to the rate assumed for future mortality. A 1
percentage point increase in the rate will reduce the embedded value by €0.12 million, while a
1 percentage point decrease in the rate will increase the embedded value by €0.12 million.

The economic assumptions used in the calculation have been set to be internally consistent as
well as reflecting the directors’ view of economic conditions in the longer term. The valuation
assumed a real return of 1% pa (2015: 2% pa) for with profits business with a risk discount rate
of 6.5% pa (2015: 7.5% pa). For term assurance and unit linked business these assumptions
are unchanged. Expense are assumed to inflate at 3.5% pa (2015: 3.5% pa).

As noted, economic assumptions are set to be internally consistent and reflect the real long-
term returns anticipated and the risk appetite of the Directors. To maintain this internal
consistency, any changes to the economic assumptions are considered as a whole. We consider
that any changes to the assumptions that do not change the internal consistency will not
significantly change the value of the in force business.

Demographic assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis to reflect the development of
experience and to improve on the reliability of the estimation process. This year both the rates
of expected future mortality and future surrenders / lapses have been revised across all product
lines for this reason. Future mortality assumptions continue to be set with reference to standard
mortality tables and vary with the age of the policyholder.

Future lapse / surrender assumptions continue to be set as a function of the product type, the
premium frequency, and the duration a policy has been in force. Assumptions about the
servicing costs of in force policies are also made in line with the current, aggregate renewal
costs reflected in the profit and loss.
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14.

Property, plant and equipment

Group

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2015
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount
At 31 December 2016
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Freehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fittings &

buildings improvements equipment Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
4,296 550 2,654 7,500

- (184) (1,499) (1,683)
4,296 366 1,155 5,817
4,296 366 1,155 5,817
7 - 259 266

- (55) (252) (307)
4,303 311 1,162 5,776
4,303 550 2,913 7,766

- (239) (1,751) (1,990)
4,303 311 1,162 5,776
4,303 311 1,162 5,776
82 - 239 321

- (55) (307) (362)
4,385 256 1,094 5,735
4,385 550 3,152 8,087

- (294) (2,058) (2,352)
4,385 256 1,094 5,735

Land and buildings are shown at fair value (level 3). As at 31 December 2016 and 2015,
the fair value of the freehold land and buildings is not significantly different as compared to

its historical cost less depreciation.

No revaluation of land and buildings was carried out during the current and comparative

year.
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14. Property, plant and equipment - continued

Company Freehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fittings &
buildings  improvements equipment Total
€000 €000 €000 €000

At 31 December 2014
Cost 4,296 550 2,585 7,431
Accumulated depreciation - (184) (1,430) (1,614)
Net book amount 4,296 366 1,155 5,817
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount 4,296 366 1,155 5,817
Additions 7 - 259 266
Depreciation charge - (55) (252) (307)
Closing net book amount 4,303 311 1,162 5,776
At 31 December 2015
Cost 4,303 550 2,844 7,697
Accumulated depreciation - (239) (1,682) (1,921)
Net book amount 4,303 311 1,162 5,776
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount 4,303 311 1,162 5,776
Additions 82 - 239 321
Depreciation charge - (55) 307) (362)
Closing net book amount 4,385 256 1,094 5,735
At 31 December 2016
Cost 4,385 550 3,083 8,018
Accumulated depreciation - (294) (1,989) (2,283)
Net book amount 4,385 256 1,094 5,735

Land and buildings are shown at fair value (level 3). As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
fair value of the freehold land and buildings is not significantly different as compared to its

historical cost less depreciation.

No revaluation of land and buildings was carried out during the current and comparative

year.
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Investment property

Group and Company
Level 3
€000
At 31 December 2014
Cost 54,304
Accumulated fair value gains 24,340
Net book amount 78,644
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount 78,644
Additions 3,741
Net fair value gains 1,716
Closing net book amount 84,101
At 31 December 2013
Cost 58,045
Accumulated fair value gains 26,056
Net book amount 84,101
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount 84,101
Additions 659
Disposals 98)
Net fair value gains 3,331
Closing net book amount 87,993
At 31 December 2016
Cost 58,652
Accumulated fair value gains 29,341
Net book amount 87,993

Fair value of land and buildings

An independent valuation of the Group’s land and buildings was performed by valuers to
determine the fair value of the land and buildings as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. The
fair value movements were credited to profit or loss and are presented within ‘investment
return’ (Note 5).

The Group’s and the Company’s investment property, comprising mainly office buildings,
have been determined to fall within level 3 of the fair valuation hierarchy. The different
levels in the fair value hierarchy have been defined in Note 3.4.

The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value
hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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15.

Investment property - continued

For all properties, their current use equates to the highest and best use.
Valuation processes

On an annual basis, the Group engages external, independent and qualified valuers to
determine the fair value of the Group’s land and buildings. As at 31 December 2016 and
2015, the fair values of the land and buildings have been determined by DHI Periti.

At each financial year end the investments department:

e verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

e assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year valuation
report;

e holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

For level 3 fair value of all office buildings with a total carrying amount of €88.0 million
(2015: €84.1 million), the valuation was determined by capitalising future net income
streams based on significant unobservable inputs. These inputs include:

Future rental cash inflows based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties
and supported by the terms of any existing lease, other contracts
or external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties;

Capitalisation rates based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data at the valuation date.

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

At 31 December 2016

Fair value Significant unobservable inputs
at 31 Rental Capitalisation
December Valuation value rate
Description € technique € %o
Office buildings 88.0m  Capitalisation of 5.07m Varying between
future net income 425 & 7.50
streams
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At 31 December 2015
Fair value Significant unobservable inputs
at 31 Rental Capitalisation
December Valuation value rate
Description € technique € %o
Office buildings 84.1m  Capitalisation of 4.85m Varying between
future net income 4.25 & 6.50
streams

For each valuation for which rental value and capitalisation rate have been determined to
be the significant unobservable inputs, the higher the rental value and the lower the
capitalisation rate, the higher the fair value. Conversely, the lower the rental value and the

higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value.

Investment in group undertaking

Year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015
Opening and closing net book amount

The group undertaking at 31 December is shown below:

Registered Nature of
Group undertaking office Business
Growth Investments Development House Investment
Limited Pjazza Papa Giovanni XXIII  services

Floriana, FRN 1420

Class of
shares held

Ordinary shares

Company
€000

466

Percentage of
shares held
2016 & 2015

100%
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Investments in associated undertakings

Group and Company
€000
At 31 December 2014
Cost 15,129
Accumulated net fair value gains 3,340
Net bock amount 18,469
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount 18,469
Additions 1
Net fair value gains 9,670
Closing net book amount 28,140
At 31 December 2015
Cost 15,130
Accumulated net fair value gains 13,010
Net book amount 28,140
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount 28,140
Additions -
Net fair value gains 5,763
Closing net book amount 33,903
At 31 December 2016
Cost 15,130
Accumulated net fair value gains 18,773
Net book amount 33,903
The associates at 31 December are shown below:
Registered Class of Percentage
Associated undertakings  office shares held of shares held
2016 & 2015
Premium Realty Limited Middle Sea House Ordinary shares 25%
(in dissolution) Floriana, FRN 1442
Church Wharf Properties Middle Sea House Ordinary shares 50%
Limited Floriana, FRN 1442
Plaza Centres p.l.c. The Plaza Commercial Centre Ordinary shares 28.36%
Bisazza Street
Sliema
Tigne Mall p.l.c. The Point Shopping Mall Ordinary shares 35.46%
Tigne Point
Sliema
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18. Other investments

The investments are summarised by measurement category in the table below:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Fair value through profit or loss 1,452,520 1,333,223 1,452,513 1,333,217
Loans and receivables 205,970 182,882 205,970 182,882

1,658,490 1,516,105 1,658,483 1,516,099

(a) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Analysed by type of investment as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Equity securities and units in unit trusts 568,344 488,229 568,337 488,223
Debt securities 787,067 739,200 787,067 739,200
Assets held to cover linked liabilities
- collective investment schemes 97,109 105,198 97,109 105,198
Forward foreign exchange contracts and futures - 596 - 596
Total investments at fair value through
profit or loss 1,452,520 1,333,223 1,452,513 1,333,217

Technical provisions for linked liabilities amounted to €97m as at 31 December 2016
(2015: €105m). Linked liabilities are included in technical provisions for insurance
contracts, investment contracts with DPF and investment contracts without DPF.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group and Company had no financial commitments in
respect of uncalled capital.

Equity securities and collective investments schemes are considered to be substantially non-
current assets in nature. The maturity of fixed income debt securities is detailed below:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Within one year 24,749 31,923 24,749 31,923
Between 1 and 2 years 66,465 117,179 66,465 117,179
Between 2 and 5 years 248,975 208,750 248,975 208,750
Over 3 years 446,878 381,348 446,878 381,348

787,067 739,200 787,067 739,200
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Other investments - continued

(a) Investments at fair value through profit or loss - continued

The movements for the year are summarised as follows:

Group Company
€000 €000

At 31 December 2014
Cost 959,099 959,095
Accumulated net fair value gains 180,569 180,569
Net book amount 1,139,668 1,139,664
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount 1,139,668 1,139,664
Additions 983,650 983,648
Disposals (828,286) (828,286)
Net fair value gains 38,191 38,191
Closing net book amount 1,333,223 1,333,217
At 31 December 2015
Cost 1,142,430 1,142,424
Accumulated net fair value gains 190,793 190,793
Net book amount 1,333,223 1,333,217
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount 1,333,223 1,333.217
Additions 1,076,262 1,076,261
Disposals (994,174) (994,174)
Net fair value gains 36,390 36,890
Closing net book amount 1,452,201 1,452,194
At 31 December 2016
Cost 1,237,507 1,237,500
Accumulated net fair value gains 214,694 214,694
Net book amount 1,452,201 1,452,194

Derivative financial liabilities amounting to €0.3m (2015: €0.6m assets), included in the
table above, are classified within assets and liabilities respectively in the statement of
financial position.
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18. Other investments - continued
(b) Loans and receivables

Analysed by type of investment as follows:

Group and Company
2016 2015
€’000 €000
Deposits with banks or credit institutions 196,727 173,386
Loans secured on policies 9,243 9,496

205,970 182,882

Maturity of deposits with bank or credit institutions:

Group and Company

2016 2015
€000 €000
Within 3 months 44,648 -
Within | year but exceeding 3 months 146,079 69,641
Between 1 and 5 years 6,000 103,745

196,727 173,386

The above deposits earn interest as follows:

Group and Company

2016 2015

€000 €000

At fixed rates 196,727 173,386

196,727 173,386

As at 31 December 2016, an amount of €1.10m (2015: €0.62m) included within deposits
with banks or credit institutions was held in a margin account as collateral against
exchange traded futures.
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18.

19.

Other investments - continued

(b)

Loans and receivables -

continued

The movements for the year (excluding deposits) are summarised as follows:

Group and Company

Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals (sales and redemptions)

Closing net book amount

Group and Company

Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals (sales and redemptions)

Closing net book amount

Loans
secured on
policies

€000

9,390
1,665
(1,559)

9,496

Loans
secured on
policies

€000

9,496
5,839
(6,092)

9,243

The above loans earn interest at fixed rates.

Deferred tax liability

Balance at | January
Movement during the year:
Profit or loss (Note 9)

Balance at 31 December (net)

Group
2016
€000

Company
2016
€000

2015
€000

2015
€000

(22,478) (17,071) (22,476) (17,071)

(2,908) (5,407) (2,908) (5,405)

(25,386) (22,478) (25,384) (22,476)

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated on all temporary differences using a principal tax rate
of 35% (2015: 35%) with the exception of investment property and freehold and other
property, for which deferred income taxes are calculated using a principal tax rate of 8% or
10% of the carrying amount (2015: 8% or 10%).
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19. Deferred tax liability- continued

The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Tax effect of temporary differences
attributable to:
Investment property (7,916) (7,534) (7,916) (7,534)

Fair value adjustments on financial
investments (61,970) (52,383) (61,970) (52,383)

Property, plant and equipment

(685) (536) (683) (534)
Unabsorbed tax losses and
capital allowances 45,185 37,975 45,185 37,975
Balance at 31 December (net) (25,386) (22,478) (25,384) (22,476)

Movements in the amounts disclosed in the table above are recognised in profit or loss.

The tax effect of temporary differences attributable to the value of in-force business
amounts to €3.51m (2015: €1.26m).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off a current tax asset against a tax liability. The above amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position.

The directors consider that the above temporary differences are substantially non-current in
nature.

The Group’s deferred tax liability was established on the basis of tax rates that were
substantively enacted as at the financial year end.
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20.

21.

Debtors and prepayments and accrued income

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Debtors

Amount due from group undertaking (Note 30) - - 161 383
Amount due from immediate parent 10 - 10 -
10 - 171 383

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 11,825 11,523 11,825 11,523
Other prepayments and accrued income 1,359 1,499 1,216 1,340
13,184 13,022 13,041 12,863

All of the above receivables are considered to be current in nature.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, the year-end cash and cash equivalents

comprise the following:

Group

2016 2015
€000 €000

Cash at bank and in hand 62,368 33,693

Company
2016 2015
€000 €000

61,527 32,802

Deposits held with banks included in cash at bank and in hand, earn interest as follows:

Group
2016 2015
€000 €000

At floating rates 60,869 33,277

Company
2016 2015
€000 €000

60,028 32,390
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Share capital

Authorised
24,000,000 Ordinary shares of €2.50 each

Issued and fully paid
21,900,000 Ordinary shares of €2.50 each

Other reserves

Value of in-force business
Balance at 1 January

Increase/(decrease) in value of in-force business (Note 13)

Balance at 31 December

The above reserve is non-distributable.

Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
60,000 60,000
54,750 54,750
Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
47,255 49,595
6,527 (2,340)
53,782 47,255
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Technical provisions — insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF,
including reinsurers’ share of technical provisions

(i) Insurance contracts

Group and Company

2016 2015
€000 €000
Gross technical provisions
- claims outstanding 2,989 2,147
- long term business provision 536,539 527,759
539,528 529,906
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
- claims outstanding 502 134
- long term business provision 1,087 2,213
1,589 2,347
Net technical provisions
- claims outstanding 2,487 2,013
- long term business provision 535,452 525,546
537,939 527,559

Movements are as follows:

Group and Company
2016 2016
€000 €000
Gross Reinsurance
Year ended 31 December

At beginning of year 529,906 2,347
Charge to profit or loss 9,622 (758)
At end of year 539,528 1,589
Group and Company
2015 2015
€000 €000
Gross Reinsurance
Year ended 31 December
At beginning of year 509,235 395
Charge to profit or loss 20,671 1,952
At end of year 529,906 2,347

The above liabilities are substantially non-current in nature.
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24. Technical provisions — insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF,
including reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - continued

(i1) Investment contracts with DPF
Group and Company

2016 2015
€000 €000
Investment contracts with DPF (gross and net)
- claims outstanding 11,370 8,249
- long term business provision 1,129,964 962,515

1,141,334 970,764

Movements are as follows:
Group and Company

2016 2015
€000 €000
Year ended 31 December
At beginning of year 970,764 813,722
Charge to profit or loss 170,570 157,042
Atend of year 1,141,334 970,764

The above liabilities are substantially non-current in nature.

Long term contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity
(a) Assumptions

Rate of future investment return

The rate of future investment return (valuation interest rate) is calculated in accordance
with the Regulations. In accordance with these rules the calculation of the rate of future
investment return is based on a prudent assessment of the yields generated by the long term
business assets. This assessment does not include any allowance for capital growth on
assets other than bonds. On bonds the allowance must be consistent with the yield to
maturity of the instrument in the market. This could be interpreted as setting the rate of
future investment return in line with the weighted average portfolio running yield taking
into account certain risk adjustments.
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24. Technical provisions — insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF,
including reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - continued

Long term contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity — continued

(a) Assumptions - continued

Bonus rates

The current rates of reversionary and terminal bonuses are determined by the Board in
consultation with the Approved Actuary. Different bonus rates are declared on different
generations of contracts depending on the type of product, cost structure, past investment
performance and premium rates. Different bonuses are declared to maintain equity
between different generations of contract holders and products with different
characteristics. Future bonus rates are not guaranteed and the assumptions are set to allow
for a fair and orderly run-off of the fund.

The levels of reversionary bonus rates are affected by measures taken to provide resilience
to market conditions, and to provide for future payments of terminal bonuses. These
measures are not intended, over the long term, to be a source of profit or loss.

Policy maintenance expenses

The per policy maintenance expense has been determined by reference to the Company’s
cost base.

Minimum reserve

The minimum reserve is determined on a policy by policy basis where appropriate and is
set to equal the current surrender value or zero whichever is greater.

Mortality

The Company makes reference to AMCO0 (2015: AMCO00) mortality tables.

(b) Changes in assumptions

In accordance with normal practice, investment return assumptions were reviewed to
reflect market movements over the year. Similarly our policy expense expectations were
also updated. The combined impact of these changes in assumptions was charged against
the technical result for the year.
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24.

25.

26.

Technical provisions - insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF,
including reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - continued

Long term contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity — continued
(c) Sensitivity analysis

The directors have considered the sensitivity of the key variables underlying the liability
for long term contracts. The most sensitive assumption is the rate of future investment
return that will be driven by market forces. Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk and
equity price risk has been disclosed in Note 3. The Insurance Regulations ensure a
consistent and prudent derivation of this key estimate as described above. The Company’s
bonus policy is also influenced by market conditions. The Company’s reserving policy
considers market conditions over the longer term through prudent assumptions of future
investment returns combined with a consistent view of future bonuses. This acts to
mitigate the impact of market movements and profit or loss is not affected by changes in
the rate of regular bonus.

Technical provisions — investment contracts without DPF

Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
Long term business provision 53,234 62,466
Claims outstanding 907 319
54,141 62,785

The above liability is considered to be substantially non-current in nature.

Subordinated loan

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had an undrawn borrowing facility amounting to €4
million, which was cancelled in 2016.
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Creditors and accruals and deferred income

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Creditors
Creditors arising out of direct insurance
operations 5,626 3,996 5,626 3,996
Amount owed to immediate parent company
(Note 30) - 189 - 189
Indirect taxation 812 448 812 448
Other creditors 1 15 - -
6,439 4,648 6,438 4,633
Accruals and deferred income
Accruals 2,305 2,585 2,231 2,565
Deferred income 620 509 620 509
2,925 3,094 2,851 3,074
Total liabilities 9,364 7,742 9,289 7,707
Current 9,218 7,594 9,143 7,559
Non-current 146 148 146 148
9,364 7,742 9,289 7,707

Deferred income includes front-end fees received from holders of investment contracts
without DPF as a prepayment for asset management and related services and rental income
received in advance. These amounts are non-refundable and are released to income as the

services are rendered.
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28. Note to the cash flow statements

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
Profit before tax 11,552 15,577 11,435 15,431
Adjusted for:
Amortisation (Note 13) 463 430 461 428
Depreciation (Note 14) 362 307 362 307
Investment return (77,046) (95,013) (77,044) (95,014)
Movement in:
Technical provisions 172,306 175,673 172,306 175,673
Debtors, prepayments and accrued income 43) 248 163 109
Creditors, accruals and deferred income 1,622 (1,161) 1,582 (1,158)
Cash generated from operations 109,216 96,061 109,265 95,776

29. Commitments
Capital commitments

Commitments for capital expenditure not provided for in these financial statements are as

follows:
Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000

Authorised and contracted:
- property, plant and equipment 365 771 365 771
- intangible assets 626 853 626 853
991 1,624 991 1,624
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29.

30.

Commitments - continued

Operating lease commitments - where the Company is the lessor

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:
Group and Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
Not later than 1 year 3,153 2,203
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4,700 3,203
7,853 5,406

Related party transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related

parties.

On 31 July 2011, Mapfre Middlesea p.l.c. obtained de facto control over the Company
without acquiring a further interest in the acquiree. Control was acquired by virtue of a
shareholders’ agreement following the change in shareholding in Mapfre Middlesea p.l.c.
during the year, which resulted in MAPFRE Internacional S.A.(the “intermediate parent™)
acquiring a controlling interest in Mapfre Middlesea p.l.c.. From this date, MAPFRE MSV

Life p.l.c. was classified as a subsidiary of Mapfre Middlesea p.l.c..

Transactions with related parties during the year include, amongst others, transactions with
Mapfre Middlesea p.l.c. (immediate parent) and the Bank of Valletta p.l.c. Group (other
related parties). The Bank is a related party in light of its shareholding in the Company.
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30. Related party transactions - continued

Relevant particulars of related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Sale of insurance contracts and other services

Transactions with a parent undertaking:
Commission income

Transactions with the Company’s subsidiary:
Trailer fee income
Management fee income

Transactions with other related parties:
Trailer fee income
Rental income on investment property

Transactions with the immediate parent
undertaking:
Reimbursement of expenses for back
oftice support services (Note 7)

(b) Purchase of products and services

Transactions with the immediate parent
undertaking:
Rent expense
Purchase of insurance cover and other services
Reimbursement of expenses for back
office support services (Note 7)

Transactions with a parent undertaking:
Reinsurance premium ceded
Staff development training
Computer maintenance
Capitalisation of software development

Transactions with the Company’s subsidiary:
Investment transaction costs

Transactions with other related parties:
Acquisition costs
Bank charges
Costs in relation to hosting of IT server

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
135 38 135 38
- - 181 197
- 73 70
12 15 12 15
57 56 57 56
21 - 21 -
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
104 102 104 102
153 145 153 144
- 51 - 51
741 393 741 393
37 52 37 52
406 51 406 51
323 498 323 498
- 28 55
5,685 4,945 5,685 4,945
28 39 22 30
17 17 17 17
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30. Related party transactions - continued

(¢) Investments

Investments in securities issued by other related
parties
Deposits held with other related parties

Investment return, net of expenses and other
charges:
- other related parties

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
€000 €000 €000 €000
19,700 19,167 19,700 19,167
224,781 198,827 223,940 197,936
244,481 217,994 243,640 217,103
2,821 3,516 2,821 3,516

Further to the above, details of dividend income receivable from the Company’s subsidiary
are provided in Note 5 to these financial statements.

Year-end receivables/(payables) arising from the above and other transactions are presented

below:

Amount due from subsidiary (Note 20)

Accrued income from other related parties

Accruals and deferred income

Creditors arising out of direct insurance
operations — other related parties

Amounts due from/(to) immediate parent
company (Notes 20 & 27)

Creditors arising out of insurance operations —
parent undertaking

Group

2016 2015
€000 €000
403 787
(136) -
(460) (498)
10 (189)
(573) (178)

Company
2016 2015
€000 €000
161 383
403 787
(136) -
(460) (498)
10 (189)
(573) (178)

All the amounts receivable or payable are unsecured and interest free, except for the

subordinated loan (Note 26).

Total salary remuneration paid by the Group to key management personnel during the year
amount to €1.14m (Company: €1.12m). Corresponding figures for 2015 were €0.97m and

€0.94m respectively.
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31.

Statutory information

MAPFRE MSV Life p.l.c. is a public limited liability company and is incorporated in
Malta.

MAPFRE Middlesea p.l.c. (the “immediate parent”) is a company registered in Malta, the
registered office of which is Middle Sea House, Floriana, FRN 1442, Malta.

The group’s ultimate parent is Fundacién MAPFRE, the registered office of which is
situated at Paseo de Recoletos 23, 28004, Madrid, Spain.

87



